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Mrs. Nobue Minato, hﬁfif;Ln{é

BeBs I 1977
Accession No. 3%164; Tape No. l; Track No. l.

Ms. Okaye.. gust to start with, Mrs. lMinato, could,
you give us your full name, and your date and place of birth?
Mrs., Minato: Nobue lMinato.

Ms. Is that N-0o=be..?

Mrs. Minatoi.... u-e.

Ms. Nessel

Mrs., Minato: N-o-b-u-e. Nobue.

Ms. Okaye..

Mrs., Minato: Okay... People... you know that my friends call
me "Nobu" for short, but... I'm Margaret to the Caucasian
friends, you know...

Ms. RiphE. .« LIghts V.

Mrs. Minato:e.... yecah. And 1 was born on April the fifteenth,
1911. Uh-huh. &So that's my agé.

Ms. And you were born in Vancouver?

Mrs. Minato: Yes, right on... either... around Powell Street
somewhere, 1 think. I'm not sure. Um-hmm....

Ms. Were you born at home?

Mrs. Minato: Oh yes. There was a mid-wife... at that time,
you know. I don't know who she was. There was quite a few
mid-wives then.

s, Yes, so we understand. Gradually, you know, we're

finding out that that was the way most people were borne....

Mrs., Minato: Um-hmm... Yes... Oh, yes... at home. And they

were very efficient. They stayed with you, 1 think, twenty-
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ERURRoura s Tou know, right 'til... And 80..-.
Ms. From the onset of labour, right through...
Hrs. Minato: Yes. And so, you were never... worried, I

think, you know... everybody had it that way. I had the

Ms., Ohsi did you?U
(\NM -

llrs., Minato: It was in the home.

Mse Gee, that must have been much nicer.

Mrs, Minato: Oh yes. ©She was with me. I... you know...
during... and... 1t was really nice. There was no anaesthetic
or anything, and... you knew exactly what was happening, and...
it was very good.

Ms. Can they handle complications?

Mrs, Minato: No, they get a doctor right away. Um-hmm... SO...
you don't worry about that, you know. And... the third one

was at St. Paul's and the last one was born in Vernon ate..e.

in the Jubilee Hospital. S0... I remember all kinds of

experience, Um-hmm... Umn-hmm,..

Ms. Now, when you were little, and you were born in

Vancouver, your parents had been here — or at least, your

mother had been here only a short time.ee?

Mrs. Minato: Oh yes... Uh-huh... She came in 1910, in the
spring, and my dad was here I think in 1906 or 7 and... he
was... 1 think he went back before then, too, you know, and...

beczuse my brother was born in JapaNe.. YOU SEE.es

Ms. Al e v L SE@ ST
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Mrs., Minato: So... she stayed, I guess, for a couple of
years there, you kiow, and then she came and I was born
the next year, like...
Ms. Ubh-huh... When he first left Japan, did he come
to the United States?
Mrs, Minato: Oh... he... he's... when he first left Japan,
1 think he went to Manchuria and then to Korea and then to
eees lTaiwan. My mother went... but I don't know when it

was, but... because my mother went to Taiwan with him.

Ms. Oh!

Mrs, Minato: And then he went to Hawaii, and then he was in

San Francisco, and he panned for gold, SOeee SOee. you know,

that's before he settled here...

Ms. Right. &S0 he was really a traveller?

Mrs. Minato: Oh yes. 5o he... he's been around. Um-hmm...
Mse was he a younger brother?

Mrs. llinato: No, he's an only boy.

Ms. The only one...

rs, 'Yinato: Um~-hmm... S0... like... he's... he h:ss no, you
know, nobody else. But... his uncle, 1 think, and his friends,
were very adventurous people and/%ﬂéna?dthink that way, he
was always in with a group. You know... when they left
see, they were from Kochiken, Japan, you know... It's on...

on Shikoku Island, facing the Pacific, and I think they feel,

looking out, you know, that they want to go somewhere, you

Knowe.
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Ms. The sea beckons.

he...
Mrs. Minato: Yes,/he's been around. Um-hmm...
Mse Heee. Mus--.,.. Wwhen he was in San Framnsisco, and
panned for gold...
Mrs. Minato: YeSee.e.
Ms. He went... I guess he'd gone up into the hillsS...
Mrs., Minato: Barkerville, is it? #Aound there...
Ms. Well, Barkerville is in B.C....
Mrs. Minato: No, no... Not Barkerville... You knowe...
Ms. Highway 49, there are a lot of...
Mrs. Minato: Somewheér€eee Y€Seee
Ms, eses GLOWNns along thereec.ee.
Mrs. Minato:... right around there, yeahe..e.
Ms. Uh-huh... I don't... can't remember. But anyway,
he got up his "poke", and... the story he told us, that...
everybody had a poke, and they had their name on, you know,
and then... and they put it into one trunk ands.all the way --
it took maybe how many days to go back?-- twenty days,or
twenty-five days... and one fellow would sit on top of the bo--...
the trunk -- with two guns... you know... and so, he/;;é EZtch—
man. And then the next night, there was somebody else. And

they got there okay, and they got their... Took thelr go--...

And so my dad's uncle — this smart fellow -- and said, "Well,

yau!r(J'uff Spehcftf /4 so why not buy a little plece

of land?" you know. 4And he had it... for quite awhile. Sold

it, you know, and not... we remember so it's... um-hmm...
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And then he said, "Beo—yeu—mimut if I3
\ ettt

he got married, and... he Bs¥ her, you know, becaus€e.e.. N€eee

and then he went to Taiwan with her, I think, and then... she

was pregnant, and... so my brother was born in Japan. And

then she came in 1910, and then I was born the next year.

Mse. Did your mother ever tell you her first impressions

when she landed in Vancouver?

Mrs. Minato: Well...She... she never said very much, you know,

but she ... She was Verye... wanted to learn things, you know.

And so, she was... first, when they come To Vancouver, was

right down on Powell Street, you know, gndis.. 1 think they...

they had... they had the... my... father bought a... some
#;rooming house or something, and she had the... she was boa--...

doing the boarding house, because all the Japanese single would

go to fishing, or logging, and then in the winter, 1 guess there

was no work, is it?

Mse. That's right.

Mrs. Minato: 4nd so she... they would board, and she says,

oW
well... they!y the money, and... and then they paid for

the board and that, and then... you know, you kept them
going like that for years, l1ike... and she said she'd cook,
and... And then she thought, "Well, maybe this 8 %0 e o LOT

her, and then... Dad got a job at -- he was working for the

Morrison Wire Company, you know, and SO we moved away from
there, to Cordova Street, 1 guesS... Uh-huh... But... that's

when I was around Powell Street, you know.

5 e
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1 - TR Uh-huh... She must have been working quite hard
with a family..e..
Seasuiinato: Ohy yeS... Y68 .. Uh-huh...
Ms. ess Of little children, and taking in boarders. Did
she do all the laundry herself?
Mrs. Minato: Yes...
Mse Huh...
Iirs. Minato: And...with handg,you know. A little washing board,
and... and... Oh, she... she said, you know, she would buy
meat, you know, the... like... cheapest place, and then cut
the... the good part, to make sukiyaki, and then the other
part for stew, you know, and had all of this, and... so I guess
1t was an all day work for her. Um-hmm...
Ms. Do you remember how many boarders she would have at
a time?
lrs, Minato: I don't know. I was maybe three, or...you know-—-I
don't remember, but there was a... always... you know, a lot of

people there. Um-hmm. And thene... I don't think she had it for

very long. ind then she... then we moved to Cordova otreet, at

ees 1 guess... that was when I was about six or seven, I guess,
and... 920 Cordova Street, you know. Well... Dad was working
at the wire mill and mother went washing,to thee... home...

S0 she ldé%j# every morning.

Mse To people's houses?

llrs, Minato: Yeah... And I don't know... See, at 920, it was a

big house, and we weren't alone -- see, there was always some
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new people coming with a new wife from Japan, and then they
would -- they weren't boarding, but they would have one Iroom,
and cook 1n there... you know. And... we usually had some-
body there. So I think there was somebody looking after my

two sisters, I guess, because I was going to school. Just

e

starting to school. | And... you kKnow, when I was Saixs L. thigk

I went to... just the Japanese School, you know, and there was
an English teacher taught us to read and spell. So it was...
the Japanese curriculum was number one, and then... I guess
about at that time, they decided to... no, that that was
wrong. "These are Canadians, and they should go to..."you
know, "the ordinary public school first, and then... the extra
reading and writing in Japanese." And SO... I don't know when
1t changed, but then, we were going to the -- I was golng to

seymour School, and walking to the Japanese language school,

you know,

Ms. Where was the Japanese language school, then?

Hrs. Minato: It's the same place as where it is now, but it
the

was/old building, so it was farther... you know, next to
Ms. Oh... Mprs, Minato:

it./ It was an 0ld wooden building...

Ms. On Alexander Street...”?

Mrs., Minato: Yes... I thought there was... I don't have —-

there vas a picture of the school. But anyway..e..

Ms. there's the Japanese Community Hall there now.

Was the building on the same land, OTe..?

Mrs. Minato: No...




Ms. NOXE to 1tsae
MER. Ninato: But... next to it.

Ms. 1. 88€eee

Mrs. llinato: It was a wooden building, and we had the
and

assembly in front of it,/ we all lined up, you know, and

then went in to our classes, you know, and then they built
that 1n 1928, next deoor to it.

Ms. Uh-huh.... Right. How many rooms would bLe in the
small, wooden building?

rs, Minato: One... two... three, four... Maybe six, or... So,
I can't remember very well. Maybe six or so.

Mse. Yid 1t have heat by a stove, or was there... some
kind of central heating, or?

lrs. Minato: No, I think it was that we had a stove in each
room, wasn't it... in that wooden building. I kina of think
it was. Um-hmm... And... The... where the building stands
now — right to the corner -- was our grounds. 4nd we hade...
First of July, we would have games... you know, like sports,
you Kknow... And... 411 the parents came to see it, you know,
ande... 1t was quite a big "do" for the Japanese community,

you know, these... school "do's", you know.

Ms. Vo you remember any of your teacher's names, at

the school?

Ilrs, Minato: Oh yes... oh yes. Like Mr. and Mrs. SatOeeee

Ms. Oh, they were there at that school, too?

Mrs. Minato: Oh, yes. And there was... before Mr. Sato, there

was a lMr. Tashiro -- this is the Principal's name -- and Mr.
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Inouye -- that was another Principal's name, and then lir.
Sato became Principal. 4£nd... We knew Mr. Sato, and then
we knew when the... Mrs. Sato came to Canada. Uh-huh...
because I was =-- how old was I then? About nine, Ore.e. SOeee
Ms . Uh-huhe.. 1t's ¢ to rememberese

Mrs. Minato: Yezh... oh, yeah. &snd... they've been very

good to us. We... Yes, and There was Mrs.... there was lirs,

Iizuka, Mrs. Heike, Mrs. Furushyo... these are all... not My

) | SIS | LN
teachers, but you know... AL was

here, and Mrs.... who else did my sons have? Oh... qQuite a
few teachers, you know. They would come from Japan. Um-hiM..e.
S0... That's the way I... we learned. We went to ordinary
school and then learned this extra Japanese, you know.

Mse. Before, you mentioned learning -- there was an
English teacher who did teach you some reading and writing,
although the curriculum was mainly J apaneste oo

Mrs. Minato: Um-hmm... um-hom, un-hmom,..

Mse ... So this English teacher would come in for a
part of the day at Japanese school?

Mrs. Minato:YesS... yeSe... Uh-huh...

Ms. I seese. Uh-huh...

Mrs. Minato:... and... she would give us an knglish name, be-
cause our names were so complicated, you Know. »SO SuE sald
"May"... and... you know, or "Alice" or... whatever she...
you know, so that everybody had an English name, you KnNowe

She was quite a nice teacher. I don't remember her name.
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But then it changed completely so we went to

Seymour School for the... from/three....to three-thirty, and

then we walked to the other school... I guess it started at

four, I guess.

ITranscript resumes:

Irs., Minato: ... lMrs. Monroe had about eight ¢ghildren, SO...
she would bake, and she would teach Mother... She couldn't
speak very much, but she was very fast to catch on, you know.
She would bake, and we'd go home... (sniffs)... smell this

fresh bread, and we'd cut it, and... thick like that, and

put butter and... and jam, on, and that was our in-between
snack, you know, and then we'd walk to school eating that,

you know... the Japanese School, and we'd ch--... leave our

homework here and then... take the Japanese schoolbooks and

g0 on, you know, and... That's why I think we were healthy

because we sure walked a lot.

Ms. (laughs) Yes. That would be... that would be

quite a few blocks, to walk Irom Seymour to Japanese.£hool...

Mrs. Minato:{Oh yes... Um-hmm,.. Yes.  but then, you know, you

go down Cordova Street, right down to Jackson or so, and walk

down, you knowe... you get used to it, so it's not that far.

Mse Could you tell us a bit about what the terrain was

like, when you lived on Cordova there? Tuat was in the dip --
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the land dropSe..
Mrs. Minato: Oh yes, Hale.. . Yes, well... you see, after
Monroes,there was a long kind of a... what do you call --
you know, kK--... houses with just one room for single men...
Ms. Uh-huh..e.
Mrs. Minato: And there was maybe five... five... you know, in
one cabin, like, you Knowee.e.

Uh-huh...

MS e /Tenement...
Mrs. Minato: And... yeah, tenement... and then... there was
nothing but bush and water -- you know, little... not lake or
anything, just little puddles here and there, with skunk
cabbage, and... you know. 4And in the winter, 1t would -- 1f
it's cold, it would freeze up, and then... we'd just slide
on it, you know... on the ice, and... we would... 1n the
bushes we would play "Run, Sheep, Run" and,you kndw, all
those o0ld games. You know, you hide there, and ... and you
cive them a clue when they say something... you Know, it's
a clue, isn't it? I don't know how it was played, but...
and... S0 we played there. You know, There was notv very
many people. And then, on the other side, there was a big,
reddish building on the corner, and then there was aboutv
one, two... three houses there. 4And then 1t was nothing,
Up... And then on the corner by?ﬁﬁé-;ail--... next to the
railway track, on... east of it... was the Ramsay Candy
Factory .*

Ms. Oh, it was right on Cordovg? Was it

¥ Fomtoy Bots. oM. candeyyonre. 996 fouell
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Mrs. Ilinato: No, but... i1t was facing Powell, but you see
the end of 1t was on Cordova...
Ms. Oh, I 826¢..
Mrs, linato:... because, you know, it... the railway line
this way, and then... that was the building. It was like

this, you knowe.. lOnge... longish.e 1 guess it/was iteee.

1s that Glen Drive there? 1 think so. It goes under that

bridgeese

Ms. Raymur... Is it Raymur?

Nrs. Minato: RayewreesNOeeo i8 dibeese MAYDCeee it'Se.e

Ms. I think i1t's Raymur -- now it's Raymur. DMaybe
1t had another name then.

Mrs. llinato: Maybe. Yeah. But anyway, that was a street,
and 1t goes under... under the bridge, like ... you know.
Mse Un-hmm. .. um-hmm... S50 the Viaduct on Hastings
was there when you were there?

lrs. Minato:0Oh yes... uh-huh... I remember.

Ms. Could you walk under the Viaduct, and was there

a dip, all the way to False Creek, do you remember, Oleee?

lMrs, Minato: No, I don't think so. We walked under that viaduct

and... then we went to Seymour School. But 1t was mostly, 1
ees ON tThe
think, houses, but on the/west side I think it was all bushes...

kind of thing. But I... I can't remember very well.

Ms. was there a railroad track through... underneath

the Viaduct then?

Mrs. Minato:Yes. Oh, yes, oh yes. The track was...
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Mse Uh-huh... ©0 you would walk along the trackSeee?
Mrs, Minato: No, there was another street over, and we went
along that street... down to Keefer wasn't it? 1 think
Seymour School was either... between Keefer and... and
Georgia, is 1t7
Mse Um-hmm... Yeah, i1t must be.
Mrs, Minato: S0... yeah... 1t s somewhere around there.
Ms. Umm... S0... I1'm a little confused about which
corner the Koshevois were on. Th.ey were on the corner of
Campbell and Cordova?
Mrs. Minate: Yes... 9n thes.. south,.. side.
Ms. UOn the southee.e.
Mrs. Minato: And... and the...
Mse ««e the southeast?

Mrs, Minato: ... on the north side was... Yes, southeast...

yes; LR I uh.-h-uh---

s e Uh-huh... I see. And on the north side, you were
going to say?

Mrs, Minato: Was a...a reddish, big house there, but I don't
know what it was. It had a big la--... Now this is where
the St. Joseph Ho--... you know, T.B. Hospital was built.
Mse Uh~huh...

Mrs, Minato: Yeah.

Ms. Was that the same as St. Joseph's Oriental

Hospital? Was that the... the full name for that hospital®

Mrg, Minato:I don't know.
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Ms. '‘Cause 1've seen a hospital referred to as that,
and I can't find out which hospital it was.
Hrss nate: Wells Bainbt... well that was... I don't know if
it's St. Joseph's or S--... or what, but it was a T.B.
hospital... you know. Ior orientals. *
Mse Uh-huh... Well maybe it's the same, then.
Mrs., lMinato: Yeah. Right on the corner... on the north
corner, of Cordova, between Powell and...
Ms. Yeah, righf...
Mrs. Minatos <. Cordovas,
Ms. RIghGocc
Mrs. !linato:Yeah...
Ms., and that was there when you were there”?
Mrs, Minato: No, it was a house, because I knew... 1 think
there was a fellow named George Mackintosh or somebody
lived there, and we used to call him "Georgie Porgie", and
(laughs) he used to come and play over at... you know, with
my brother, so... 1'm sure it ws a private home, you know.
But 1t was a big land. You know, they had a big lot there.
That's what I remember,
Mse. And trees... did you have lots of trees therer
Mrse. Minato: YeSeee
Ms. In that block?

Mrs. lMinato: Yes. There was... great,big maple trees, you

know, 1n front of... Monroe's had two, big, huge maple trees

and... every fall, you know, they would have a whole pile of

@%{'Lm i LLWPJZJ Sev orrén‘}olf - dﬂmﬁltélﬂd m \97¢
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maple leaves you know, and then we'd pile it up high and
we'd jump from the... between the branches, you know. 4nd
SO Weeeo. We didn't have much toys, but we really played...
outside, and we had a lot of fun. I've never owned very
much to0ySe.e
Ms. The waterfront... you mentioned last time, golng
fishing with your father.e.e. ?
Mrs., Minato: Yes.
Ms. Could you tell us where that ws again?
Mrs. Minato: Oh. It could be... I was talking some-—e.. 1%
could be the city wharf... It was just a wooden, you Know...
wharf, going out maybe a hundred... not a hundred foot -= fifty
foot. And then we would fish there, but... I just can't
remember where it... whereabouts it is, you know. DBut there
were little boats moored, and... we fished for "shinsrs”,
YOUu KNowe.
Ms. ind it would be a wharf that was built up, off the
water level, or was it flat...?

Mrs., !inato: No, it was just a floating thin,

Iuls = Uh."'h.u.h.- e e e
Mrs.. Minato: .... with the... logs underneathe..e.
Ms. Righteese

Mrs. Minato: ... you know, 8nde... you Know, 1t wasS 8eee

g, Was it one of the only public wharves there, or

wag 1% ‘bha. st

Mrs. Minato: I don't knowe.
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MS; Uh""hllh- e @ 4

gallantyn-es
Mse fhis would certainly be before Bﬁ%iégtyna Plier
had been built?
Mrs. Minato: Oh,yes. Yeah, way before. Yeah. Oh, yeah.

Eallamf ne s

Because B&Ll&g%yne Pier is... after we've been... almost
teenagers, 1 think, you know.
Ms o Uh-huh... It was the late 'Twenties, 1 think.

Mrs. Minato: Yeah.

Iranscript omits a section of the taped interview.... ;
MDVHSon Wire € Steel : 1905 at w.apnd o \/lit'ﬂrcé Drive.

Trgnagript resumes:

ls. 50 was that when you started the bathhouse?
\ N\ VAR G LG

Mrs. Minato: Yes, I guess so. I... I would think so. Uh-huh...

=

Ms. 00 thal... JOU WEIr€eee

Mrs. llinato: So... that will be about nineteen...

Mse esse thirteeniseee?

llrs, Minato: Must have been about nineteen thir--... no,
nineteen twenty-- twenty-three, I guess.

Ms., Uh-huh... 50 you would be...

Mrs. Minato: Twelve...

Ms. Twelve...

Mrs, Minato: Um-hmm,.,.. Eleven or twelve. Twelve, I guess. Um-
hmm,

Ms. Can you tell us again, about the bathhouse? Iirst

of all, where it was?
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Mrs. Minato: Oh yes. It was on 318 Powell Street, you kKnow.
On the corner was, I think, lMrs. Hamanaka's/iiﬁu 0f 8 evs
a confectionary grocery store. And then next to 1t, was
Nakamura's Florist Shop, and then next to i1t was a... a
shoeshine, you know, where Mr, —-- 1 don't know what hils
name was -- but he was shining shoes, and sO... the florist
and the shoeshine people just had a... not a very big store,
you Knowe. -haybe, say, twenty-five feet. 4And the rest of
the back was vacant, and my dad rented it for putting all
the wood there. You know, the four foot length wood, ,ou
know. Cords and cords of ite.e.. for... for the... for...
for the ste--... you know, the hot water boiler. ©0...
And, we moved to 222 Gore Avenue, and our back door came

into this lot where my dad would be chopping the wood, you

know. And there was two... two houses facing Gore Avenue,

and the other house was Mr. Miyasaki's I think, and he had...

he was selling, you know, bean curds and chicken meat, you
know. 4And... so they... they... their back yara was facing
our dad's wood... wood lot, you see. And then, right

was this Mrs. Hamanaka's... (phone rings) Excuse me.

Ms. Um-hmm... We'll turn the tape recorder off.

Mrs. Minato: Hamanaka Store. Yfou see, there was... jyou £IOWe.

T Sunf&d) whole... _ _
BO.+eo NOW- 2t the SunshingﬁMarket takes the/whole thing right

to the alley.--
MsS Riehlie. e

;EEE;_ELEEEQ} s ey Bhat s o hn nlae Tl 8ne  GLere. But there was
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two small houses and then the store, before, you knowe.

And upstairs was the... our bathhouse, was the... 1 think

\on Hotel <\
1t was the Lion'sg%bmtd é%u know? 518wgt‘% think. and

then in front was a little confectionary store run by a

Mrs. Hamada. And then... behind the... there was a... like,
a store here, and behind there ws an office here. Behind

it was a... taxi. I guess it was the rowell Taxi.

Ms. Oh. Behind the confectionary?

Mrs. Minato: Yeah. #nd then, the... the bathhouse was from
there on, right to the back. You see. Xou know.

Ms. S0... LO enter your bathhouse, people came through
the confectionaryeees?

Mrs. Minato: No, not the store. There was a... like a... this
wide of a hallwaye.

Ms. Oh, I see.

Mrs. linato: You know.

Mse Uh-huh...

Mrs, Minato: Well, maybe more. You know, five foot or so.
And we had our own door, and they went in, and ate... andee.e.
you see, where... where the two stores came and then that...
it turned, curved, you know, so our place got -- we took the
whole building theun, after... after... we turned the corner
there, you see., The taxi was here, and... facing with the

... almost identical, on the other side, was our little office,
where we collected our money and... you know, gave them the

towels and... to have a bath ou See.
;|
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Mse How much would 1t cost, to have a bath?
Mrs. Minato: I think 1t was ten... fifteen cents at the
most. l..¢ le.. you know. 4And... you... they were supplied
with soap, and two towels, and... you know, there was a...
the men had thelir own... to shave, there was a couple of,
you know, straight razors there. +~o... even if people Just
come in from anywhere, you know, before even they went to
even a restaurant or a Chinese, you know,/ghop suey house,
they could have a bath first, you know. 4And sO... €S
It opened at three in the afternoon, and it stayed 'til
eleven, I guess. You know. 4And then my... llom and Dad
would clean up -- wash everything up, and go to bea, and
then Dad would get up in the morning, and start the boiler
again, you know. But it was gquite Q...
Ms. Full time...

Mrs. lMinato: Yes. Um-hmm. And then, any extra time he had,

1t was chopping the cordwood. He had some help, too... toO

chop the cordwood for him, you know. They were in big -- like
this, you see, SOeee

Mse Was that about five feet?

Mrs. Minato: Four... I'm sure it was four.

MsSe Four.

Mrs. Minato: Um-hmm. But it was... and he had this big

wedge and the big wdge hammer, you know, andee.es
Ms., How thick would the four foot lengths bpe?

lMrs. Minato: Well... you seees. If the lo==... if the log
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was like this, this would be chopped into four.

Ms. ]l se€eee Uh-huh....

Mrs. Minato: You know. 0 you'd be... each piece would

be about... like this, then. Iou knowe.

Ms. Yes. S0 about six inches.

Mrs. Minato: Yes. Uh-huh. Ics.

Ms. Uo you know where he got his cordwood from?

Mrs. Minato: I can't say. But 1t certainly was a lot of wood.
We were juste... you know, it was like... right along the
whole building, you know, against 1t, all piled up, Sayeee.
six foot high. You know, it must be cords and cords, we
WETCe s e

s, Did you all help stack it, as children?

Mrs. Minato: Well, we didn't... we helped.... well, we
helped with the... see, they would wash the towels every day,
you know, maybe twice 5 day, and then we would help putl...
hang it up on this dryer, you know, on top of the boiler, there
was lines... maybe twenty-five lines there, you know, and
then we would just hang it up and... so that it would ary,
and then we'd fold it, you see. That... 80 we... we had

to clean the halls and help with the towels, you know, and
«se that was about all. Fold the towels.

Ms. Tell us again how you fold them?! There's a special
way of folding them?

Mrs. Minato: Yes. You fold them -- you know, the towels were
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about... thee.. the wiping towels were maybe... you KnNow,
like our... not as big as a... the real bath towels, but a
medium size, and then you'd fold 1t i1nto three, you know,
and then you'd fold one side and then the little towel
W8Se.. thee.. you know, the kind the Japanese use TO wasShe.?
You know, they're about 'eah... 'eah wlide, and abOul...
Mse. So about a foot wide?
Mrs. Minato: Yeche..Y€8heoeoo
Mse ind... what four feet long?
Mrs. Minato: NOe... three..e.
Mse Three feet... Just for rubbing the back?
Mrs. Minato: Yes, uh-huh, soc... and it's made with cotton et
Remember? You haven't seen one?
Ms. I've never had OnN€... NOesecos
Mrs. Minato: Ohe.. 1'll show 1t TO yOUe..e.

for a momeéNtess)
Ms. I'11 flick it off... (tape recorder is turned off /
Mrs. Minato: Yes, well the big one, you fold 1% 1into three,
like, and then you fold one end like thiSe..
Mse. Overess
Mrs. Minato: Yes, and then you put this one 1n here, and then
vou fold it over, and this... this is how 1t stood on theée.e.
vou know, in the... where I had piles and piles of towels,
you know., Yeah. 4and my dad used TO buy/gastile soap—=-you

know, the fine soap--by the cases, and then he would cut

them, you know, like... then they were square. You know,

§
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Vaatile #0ap. aAnd... D8 would let

they wouldn't melt so fast, vyou know.

8 CABO... DUy 1t a year before, like,

it up, 80 we had soaps Dy the caseloads,

2nd of Track 1l.
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eS8 MARIEEOS wiee tenugui...
Ms. Tene... tenewui?
Mrs. lMinato: Tenegui, yeah.
Mse. Tenegui. What does that mean?
Mrs. Minato: Towel to wipe your hands, like a... a handtowel.
Mse Handtowel.
Mrs, ‘linato: Yeah. So...

174 a{= FS
Ms. And... the.../just before you go, the cakes of
soap -- the big bars of soap -- you would chop into small
cakeS8i:s. 18 bthabteee?
Mrs. llinato: Well, they came in a long... you know, pieces.
vay, like this, and say, this wide, you know... SO0 there

werE-II

Ms. A couple inches wide?

Mrs, llinato: Two inches... yeah... And maybe one and a half

inches, and they would be about twenty-four inches, and then
my dad would cut it... you Knowee.e.
Ms. ACIrOSSeee CIrOSSWAYSe s e
Nrs. Minato: Yes, and then we would have... dry it, you know.

MS. I See. Uh—huh.--

Mrs. Minato: That... that was it. Yeah. S0... bathhouse was all 2g

tile. You know, beautiful. I“I

Ms. From floor to ceiling?

L
Mrs., Minato: Yes, where.... where they bathed. And... it had a '.
kind of a corrugated celing with skylights, you know. Uh-hmm..e. '
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Ms. When you say "corrugated", you meaNese..?
Mrs. Minato: The... I don't know what it was, but it had
designs on it. You know, it wasn't just a flat wall, you
know, when you look up. Um-hmm. 4nd so, the other side,
where people put their clothes on the knob, had the... Those
mattings -- what do you callees?
Ms. Tatami?
Mrs. Minato: Tatami. Yes. 4Ande.e.
Ms. And the floor... was it a wooden floor, or a tile
Ploeris et
Mrs. llinato: Which? In the bath itself?
Ms. Yeah... in :the bath.
Mrs. Minato: All... everything was tile.
g, Lyerything was tile.

Mrs. Minato: Yes.

Ms, And then, when you step out, what... what would the

floor be like?

Mrs. Minato: The tatami floor.

Ms. On, I see. Right immediately.

Mrs. Minato: Yes... Uh-huhe... Oh, yes. 4and they had a... a

kind of a mat -- a thick mat -- where you would wipe your feet,

when you come out of the wet --you see?--onto the tatami floor. méu

Ms. Uh-huh... And how big was the bathtub?

went in, after you had a wash, was... five, six foot Dy... d
don't know... ten... about here, I guess. You know. ©S1X by

te-_ill That'ﬂ Iline, iS it, Ol'e ¢ ¢ ten--- you Know--l'

=
Mrs. Minato:Well the bathtub was... the main bathtub where you

- -
"-.-‘“1-'.'!- i i
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Mse. Yeah. ©Something like that..e.
Mrs. Minato: But before you go in there, you see, they have
a round tub about four... four feet in diameter, andee.es
there's hot and cold wter running in it all the time, and
you go in there, and you wash first... you know, really clean
yourself first, and then you soak 1n the big tub. 4and then
vou come out and you wash.. thoroughly, this time... even your
ears, and... you know. And then, you go 1in and then you come
out, and you're finished, you see. S0 it's quite a ritual...

Ms. Y- P

Mrs. Minato:e... you know. ©See a lot of people with three or

four children--well they wash them all before they went into

the big tub, and... you knowe.

Mse And thee... how deep would it be, for little kids.

Likeese?

Mrs. Minato: Well, there was a ledge on the... On this big
tub, so the little kids would stand on the ledge, and they
would still be... you know. &nd the ladies, t00, WOUlQeeo
could sit on the... ledges. I never went into the men's
30 15 5 AT R B bqt.../ggg's tub were bigger, 1 think, because
there were more single men... and... so, 1 think the whole
thing was bigger than the ladies'... you Know, part. ARdese
one side, the hot water would come in, you know, and sO
people who like it real hotT, would converge around there,

and people... and one side they'd have the ccld water tap,

SO... people who didn't like it so hotv, welleee wWOuld Turn
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the cold water on. You know.

Ms. Oh, so you could... you could regulate the heat
yourself, when you were in the bath...?

Mpg, llinato: Yes. Uh-huh. Oh, yec¢ah. ©0 people that, you
know, wanted a real hot part, would go in the hot...where
the hot water's coming in, you know. 0 1t was... well, 1t

was big enough that people could swim a few strokes back and

forth, when there's not mu--... many people in there, you

knowe

Mse Ge€eoe HOWe.. well, how deep would it be, for...?

Like, if an adult sat on the bottom, about how high would

the water be”?
Mrs., Minato: Oh, you couldn't sit on the bottom...
Ms. Oh, you couldn't..? It was too deep?

Mrs. Minato: Yes. You... Well, I guess if you crouch like

that, 1 guesS... YOU KNOWess
Ms. It would come to your chin?
Mre., Minato; Yeah... chin... uh=huh.e.. 50 ite.es it 18 a blg

thing. I think a little... children would drown, you Knowe.
Ms. Did the bathhouse seem new to you then, or do you
know 1if it was builtseat

Mrs, Minato: A little before, 1'm sure, because there wasS...

two or three people before us, I think. 4sAnd then we S——eee.

went... Dad sold it. You know. I think we bought a rooming

A ]
house, then. Uh-~-hmm,..

Mg, Unh-huh... What was it called? You mentioned a name,

Tagt Gime...7
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Mrs. Minato: Matsu-no-yu.
Ms. Matsu-no-yu.
lirs, lMinato: Yes. That's right. I'm sure a lot of people

recmember. Matsu means "pine"...

Ms. e+ Means pine. Yeah..."Bath of Pine?"

Mrs. Minato: Yeah.

Ms. Uh-huh,

Mrs., Minato: I think it was one of the bigger ones. I'm not
sure. I haven't been to other ones, so I couldn't tell JOU.
It was all tile, you know, and very clean. Um-hmm...

Ms. Oh,and the boiler -- I want to ask you about the
boiler. Yo you remember how big that was?

Mrs, Hlinato: Oh, yes. ItwsS... I guess... you know, an

A4
ordlnary -- you... you've seen a steam boiler... FOU KDOWese e

and 1t had one of these gauges on top, where/they would tell

YOUeee But it must...
ls. S0 i1t was a... a big, round tank?

irs, Minato: Uh-huh.... Big, round tank. It must be...

Ms . Lt was four feet... diameter...?
feet

Ilrs., Minato: Diameter, and maybe six, you Know.../long...and

1 guess all the hot pipe--... hot water pipes, were in

there, you know. So that was a big thing. We weren't allowed
to go near the -- Dad was the only one, you KNOw, SO WEeee WE
Just look at it, and... that was it.

ls. 20 the wires where you hung all the towels, were in

the boliler room?




Mrs., Minato: Above 1t.

Mse Above the boiler...

Mrs, Minato: We had a kind of a... a stairway, going up to

a little... it was kind of... 1t was just about that wide,
but... like a.,.. the ceiling... say/.;é could stand on it, SOe..e.
I guess about this... and this wide, andeecee

Ms. Aboute...

Mrs. Mingbol v We call €0 Pess UYnN=huheeee

IS« eee Uhree... three feet high, and...

Mrs., lMinato: Lio, it was higher than that, because...

Ms. Higher than thate.se. s nat 3 O P-ij_
Mrs. Minato:... you know, the ceiling,p you sce. Lhe bath-

house... maybe twenty foot ceilling is it?Y Or fifteen foot

ceiling? You know... We had to go up quite a few steps to

this landing, like, you know, and it went right along this
back part, where the washing machines were, and the...

and the boiler was, down here, you see. 50 we'd go up, and
the... and they would... hundreds of -- resally, you know, SO
many lines there, and... we would/aéég onto it. There was

no dryer,you know. t0...20nd we used to help with that. 1t
was very hot up there, because... when you hang,.. because
this heat from the... the boiler. &S0 it Jjust dried 1n no

time. That's what I remember about that, you know. Um-hmm...

Ms. Oh, that's marvellous.

s, I wonder if any of the tile's left in there, or any...

r
AL

Or 1f.0s ANY,B1LENBc e s
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Mrs. Minato: I haven't been...
Mse. eee Of the bathhouse are still in there?
Mrs. Illinato: ... I don't know anything about it, you know. It
was there Yil the war-~-time, I'm sure. ©o0 I don't know what

Mse. Yeahe DMrs. Minato:
happened since, you know. /Um-hmm,..

Iranscript resumes:

Mse Tell us the story again, about your father buying
land in Burnabye.e..

Mrs. Minato: (laughs) That's really... Well, my dad bought
it from this man here...e.

Ms. AReoe

Mrs. Minato: You knowe.. Mr. Okumura. And... So... one day,
well, we said, "Well,we'll go and see where Dad bought the

land,” so, you know, we come way up on the streetcar, up to

the Boundary, dnde... we walked down, you know -- I don't

know if there was much street, or not, but... we came right
down here to the end of Charles Street, you see, and there
was nothing... it was really a ravine, you know. Way down,
and lMother says, "Oh, Dad, is this where you bought it7?" and
my dad says, "Well," he says, "On the map, it was flat."
(laughter) But anyway, we had a nice day out, you know, but
we could ne--... I could never forget that.

Ms. That's really a Vancouver story, you know, because

SO much land was so0ld like théet...
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50 ) B e
Mrs. Minato:Yeah, and... S0 anyway.../it's coincidence
that I am living, you know, next is Charles Street, you
see, and 1 always think well, right by the playground there,
where the swings are, about the place where Dad has his lot,

so I just laugh, you know. Funny, isn't it?

Ms. Yeaheeoo ye@heoo

Mrs. Minato: You know, atfter so many... fifty years.

’ 1“'&" : \}_.{T 3

Ms. That's right.iJHow loné did he keep that lot?

Mrs. Minato: Oh, quite a while. He was paying taxes.
But anyway, he says, "Oh..." He quit. It wasn't very much

of a tax, either, I don't think, you know... In the bushes,

here. Well anyway, it's ... really, it's so funny, because
that's one thing that comes to my mind, you know.

Ms. Uh-huh... Right.

lMrs, Minato: Charles Street. Yecah, that's rezlly comical.

Ms. 1'm wondering whether any of the little cafes on
Powell Street -- not necessarily in this block -- were Chinese-
owned at the time that you were down there?

Mrs, Minato: Oh, yeah... There was-;7n§ce

or something, UPeee UPee.. Uup on some of the... you know, top
where they had, you know, a restaurant in this block. l1'm sure
therews., 1t was a very good restaurantf;i.kina of think.

And the... the Japanese restaurant was somewhere around here =—-

oh .yé8... this 18... 1 think it was called ARSI lou

KNOWe o o

MS‘ 595-
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Mrs. Minato: Yes. but... actually, there was a store in
front, and I think you went into a... thing... into the
back, for a restaurant. I couldn't remember, you know.
Mse. Hmm,.. Homm... We have gn even earlier map
of that area, which 1s very hard to read, 1'm afraid,
because 1t was smaller print... But I noticed on it...
let's see,(rustling) where are we here... Oppenheimer...
Powell... théere's Dun--... Dunlevy and Gore... right here --
so this would be on the south side of that three hundred
block -- there's a theatre. oSun Theatre.

Mrs. Minato: Is that so?

Ms. But this is 1912, now, so that's quite a bit earlier...

Mrs. Minato: Gore, and Main, so it's got to be like this, ehe.?

g, Um-hmm. ..

Mrs. Minato: Gore and Main... Dunlevye... no, I can't remember.
Um-hmm... We used to go to the Star Theatre somewhere, on Main
otreet. On Hastings, eh..? Yeah, right here there was... used
to be a Star Theatre here., Used to vay a nickel.

Ms. In that block between Hastings andee.e.

Mrs. llinato: And... Cordova.

Mls. Cordova. Right.

Mrs. Minato: Yeah. Uh-huh. 4nd then you go down Main, there
was Rex and, you know, quite a few theatres down this way.

Ms. Uh-huh... You mentioned last tiiie Lhere was a
Japanese man who ran the Star Theatre?

Mrs., Minato: Well, he... he worked there, you know, and he would
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take the money and he would pump the organ, you know, in the...
where he collected the money, you know... yeah.
Mse. L0 e KEBDes s TOe sinw
Mrs. Minato: The musicCecee

Ms. s the muaic to the movie....

Mrs. Minato: that's right. Uh-huh... ubh-huh. Yeah, SOe...

repreegRRSIEEEIge—— T L T T Ty _E N __F _ F _ K ___F _F - _.F-_B___ N __F_ _E___R___J __J __J i e i il s T T T S S ————

Transcript omits a section of the taped interviewee.es

Transcript resumes:
Mse. Oppenheimer Park has historically been used for

gatherings of labourers and unemployed people. 1 wondered
1f you remember any of those gatherings, when you were
living near FPowell Street?

cos 0N
Mrs. Minato: No, we always remember the/Japanese baseball
team, you know, theye.. Oh, my... my dad used to... see, he
used to be a caretaker at... on Cordova Street. This Anglican
Church... Holy Cross Mission, there. In the micdle of the
block there.
Ms. Un-hmMMeee? OhReesoo
Mrs. Minato: Yes. 4nd, you know, he could see the...
Ms. Uh-huh...
ﬂzg;_ﬁigggg; Ande... €Vverybody was... you know, there was a
eeee dapanese baseball teams... everybody was so enthused,
you know. And... that... it was used for a lot of things,

you know, like/"do'sY! ©But I can't remember exactly... what.
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But it's nice that they fixed it up again, eh?

Iranscript resumes:

Ms. You told us last time a little anecdote about the
tofu seller and how you scared him?

flrs, Mipnato: Oh, you mean...? Oh yes, Hps Mivasaki. Well...

WE WEr€ee.e.W€... 1t was, you know, April Fool's DY e o

MS. Uh-hllh- - -?

Mrs, Minato: ... so we said, "Well, we'll... tell Mr. Miyasaki

all..."you know, and we went over and we saldy "Well... all
your chickens are gone." You know, he used to have a little

shed in the back, you see, with... you know, little trays with
live chickens, jyou know. 4#And... S0, he just come rushing back,
you know, and then we said, "April KFool's", and wee... we felt
very badly for doing that, but, you kKnowee. it really took

him for... surprised him. JBut you see, he used to sell this
tofu, and then, we'd go and say,"Well, give me enough chicken
for five people or so." You know, it was already cut up nice,
and then you could buy chicken bones for SOup, yYou Xnow, andeee

Ms. Uh-huh. That was the only meat he so0ld? Just

chicken?

Hrs. Minato: Yesh... Oh yes, uh-huh... and it was fresh, and

you could see... you know, he would: .. you would order 1t, and
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he would kill the chicken, clean 1t all up, and then... there
was nothing but meat, you know... You could make anything.
Sukiyaki, or... put your tofu in there, you've got your suppecr.

A little green oniON...

Ms. Tell us again, how you make tofu? How he used to
make it?

Mrs. Minato: Well, you... you soak the... well, 1'm not sure,
you know, but... just my watching him... we wre very fascinated,
you know, but... it was soaked... the soya beans... and then,
they have this big stone grind, like, you know. &#nd it would...
it wasS... with a motor, it would... you know, there was one
stone this way, and on top, another stone, and 1t would gind
up, and make it into a kind of a... a real, smootn, pulpy-like
thing, you know. 4And then... I don't know 1f they cooked Ehat,
Orfe... I guess they did, and... they put it into little Dboxes,
you know, and... press it on and a... individual tofu would
come out, you know. They would be about... four inches Dby
three inches, and they'd be about two and a half or three
inches deep, you know. 7That was tThe€...

Ms. What were the boxes made of~

Mrs. Minato: Wood.

Mse Ah.e.e. Do you remember the flavour being different
from tofu that's sold today?

Mrs. Minato: No. Just the same.

Ms e eee VEry S8NMECese

Mrs. Minato: And... when it's put through silk, I think it's




finer, and it's smooth, you know. Smoother. +#nd... there's

a difference between some that's put through... I don't know

what it i1s, but they say, and... when it's put through cotton

or silk, there's a difference in texture, you know.

Ms. What do you mean, when it's put through"?

Mrs, Minato: The... the... whatever, you know, the kina of

a thing that 18.,.. ground it outee.l Thinke...yeSe... they mustee..
Ms. O bpneys s bhey put 1t... the seive it...

Mrs. Minatot... they must...

Ms. o bhTough: the,..?

Mrs. Minato: ... yeah, I think so.l've ne--...

Ms. Oh... strain it -- that's the word.

Mrs. llinato: Yes, I think so. But anyway... Oh yes, and

that's... that's really good food.

ITranscript omits a section of the taped interviewee.e..

Ifranscript resumes:

Ms. Would you have... would other people come 1n to
Powell Street? lLike, did you have Chinese shoppers coming to
the fish stores, or... Caucasian shoppers coming to the fish
stores? Or was that unusual in those days?

Mre, Minato: Unusual, I think. I think... you knowee. I
couldn't remember very,.. not very many, you know. JLlike now,

it's so Cosmopolitan. You go to Chinatown and you see &ery
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gort of people there, you know, but l... I think it wasn'st
like that. You know, pre-war,
Ms. And I guess the community would be a lot larger,
pre-wars?
Mrs. Minato: Oh yeah. I'm sure. You know.
Ms. Do you have any idea how many people?
Mrs. Minato: I... I haven't got a clue. bHut they were, P--...
you know. #nd there were @uite a few around Fairview way,
you know, there's all the sawmills they worked. Japanese
workers there, And people around Marpole, too. Ana thehee.e.
in Richmond, you know. There was... and... these stores all
delivered, too. Took orders, and deliver. So0... even if you
dign't have a... 8 store nearby, you see, you could... you
could... the order man would go, = or else you could 'phone
in, I'm sure, and you could get your things, you know,
delivered on a certain delivery day, I think. They were reallye...
good service, 1 think.

Mse. And the drygoods stores, that sold clothing, would

they sell Japasnese clothing, or would they sell western
clothing?

Hrg,. Minato: You know, all western clothes. You know, and
your un--,.. our undershirts, panties and slips and... you
know, winter coats and everything. And... they sold materials,
too. Because a lot of Japanese were... sewed, you know.
Lverybody sew. You know, my mother, she... she learned to sew

1n Japan, but she never learned to sew western way, but she
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really... you know, look at the store and look at the style,
and see the tucks in there, and she would come home and cut
it up, and sew, you know, and... she used to get a lot of
clothes given to her, and then she would... undo 1t all, and...

and fix it for us. We... we were always well-dressed. Splc

and span. I was a real tomboy and I1'd come home with a tear

here, and de... 4 used to get bawled out, but you know, we

were...Ih t's one thing... they didn't want us to look shabby.
MS E ] Um-hmm. L

End of Track 2.
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Mrs. Minato: .eit was easier to put on, you know. They had
that... that name... not like a... not an undershirt, but a
COt==coe cotten...ll;ke something with gauze, you know, wlith
... the Japanese Stgie, and you... put your... and then you
put the top nightgown on top ol that, you see. 4And;you have
the sleeves doubled in, so when you put the... lay the byby,
after you bathe and wiped and powdered, you put it into that,
and you'd stick the two arms in, and then you fold this over,

snd... there's a tie, and tie it and then you put the longer

nightgown over and then you tie 1%, and it vs Just as snug as

a bug, you knowe.

Ms. Alidee FCCa e

Mrs. Minato: And... we thought that ws very handy.

lMs. Right... of course. Yeah, wells...you keep the
things that are of benefit, you knowe...

Mrs. llinato:That's right.

Ms. ... that are better than western style...

Mrs. Minato: Yes, that's right, because undersnirts, you kKnow,
you have to put a button on and everything, well... Yes, that'Se..
SO... that's the way... that, when the baby real--... not now,
but at that time, the layettes were Japanese style. Um-hmle.e.
But then, we used the triangle dlaperSese

MS . Yes.(laughs)

Mp Inato: eee: With Che: pEase

Ms. You were raising your children before antibliotlics
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Weéré... Popular...
Mrs. Minato: Yes... yes, yes.
Ms. fou mu--... did you know a lot of methods of, say,
stopping infection, or did your mother pass many of the old-
country methods to you?
Mrs, llinato: Well... for ins--... when you have, like a... you'd
have a cut, and i1t starts to fester, they... they would rub
green onion leaves... you know, and put that on, and it would

SUCK 10 0Ub." ARl

Ms. You'd oo the leaves on the wound?

Mrs. Minato: Yes, and... and...tie it up, you know. Oh,
there's so many old-fashioned remedies, you know.

Ms. Oh, we'd like to hear some of them?

Mrs. Minato: Well... I don't knowe I don't use them so much,

R ae e

Ms. For congestion or colds, whate... what would be some
of the methods that your mother or you used?

Mrs, Minato: Well, it was mustard plaster with us. Um-hmm...
That's... that's a Canadian way of... we... we were given
mustard plasters. You know. 4nd... for... temperature, 1
don't know. I think there was some sort of medicine, but.e.e.

I think they... they would... some people would give them
WOTITS eee YOU KNoOwe

Mse Worms?

llrs, Minato:Yes. Earthworms... boiled up. #nd that would

bring down the...
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Mse. Hmm? !
Ifirs. Minato: ... down the... Yeah, I think so. Now I'm
not sure, becausé... We never had worus, witheee lTeeo I

think that's one of the remedies. 4And... quite a few of...

——

you know... in from... And, when you had a stomach ache, they

would give you bear's... they say bear's stomach, but I guess
1t must be... their gall bladder or something. You know, it
was all dried up, you Know... cold, you know. And... it would
oo They would give you just a little bit of... you know, like
8.0 Oh, maybe just a little 1tty bit, and that would cure it.
That... that medicine all came from Japan, you know.

Ms. This was... this was the animal, bear...?

Mrs., IMinato: Yeah, I think so. And for measles, I think it
WaS... Some animal's horns, and that was, you know, steeped
and... so that it would come out in a hurry, you know. I...

l couldin't... it was called SalkEkU*or something, but 1'm
not sure., o~ovme horn of an animal. And there was all kinds
of... remedies, you know,.

Ms. Wwhat would be used for pain killer, say, in child
Labonr, oY eef

Mg, And broken legs and things?

Mre.s Minato: T:.. I don't know.

Ms. Were there any little herbalist stores, on Powell

Street?

| , aee HL1IED
,EEEA_EEEEEQF IeS, yes. You could get... And for/women's
troubles, you know, the--... they would... they would...

Oh, all these troubles used to sell the herbs from Japan,

conek , (dend uiy Qoporngpeotay e |
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you know. There was potions for... for menstruat--... you
know, trouble with.menstruatggé‘that, you know, that they
would steep out and drink it, you know. I've never used

it, but... there's lots and lots of... a treatment like that,

I'm sure.

Transcript resumes:

Ma. How did your parents feel about... coming tge.. toO
the "New World" in a sense, and... and having a completely
different life-style from what they would have had 1if they'd
stayed in Japan?

Mrs. Minato: Well... see, Mother's been to... Taiwan, and so,
she.,.. she wasn't... you know, I'm sure she... she adjusted
right away. #nd Dad has been all over, so it... you know, he
.eo he's a... he just came here to settle down. He thought
it was a very nice place to settle down, you know, sO... atter
he's... he's been all over, you know, s0 1 Think e..e Th€Ye.e.
they... the only thing was the discrimination, but you know,

he... he was... he had a good job in that wire mill, and...

and he spoke... nov fluia:Engliéh, but he understood, and

he could get along with his broken Eknglish, you know. And
hee.. I think they... they made well. &4nd/they instilled
on us about education, and we sure had to do good at school.

Ms. YeB.q4o (laughs)
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MI‘E- Min&tO: U]Il-hIﬂIll-.- Yeah--- 50----

Ms . Bid he... how did he feel about the evacuationies

ond what happened during the war?

Mrs. Minato: You mean... the evacuation? Wwell, he was an

old-age pensioner then, s0... Ifou know, 1t was hard. 4nd he

had arthritis, you know, sO... when... see, when... you know,
usually, the oldest son takes the parents, but you see, then,

when we... they were... had a chance to go to olocan or

somewhere, you know, I said, "No... we'll... we'll go with

L\
Dad... will come with us," and... my husband was taken to a

«++ road camp, on March tge third -- one of the first, becausec
e

we had a store,;on ..;bHornby and...corner of Hornby,

and... next to Burrard, is Howe... Hornby... not Howe...

Ms. Drake?
Mrs., Minato: No... on Hornby and... Nelson. That's right.

Hornby and Nelson. And so... ©e€e, when we were 1n the Iront

ljne,-aggg.peOPle said, "Well, they're still here", you know,

what do you...? S0, he was taken on March the Third. We only

had half a day's notice.e..

Mse. Really?

Mrs. Minato: ... so he made a...power-of-attorney for me

right away, so that I could get rid of the stores and thad,

and then we went to the Hudson Bay -- it was Wednesday, SO

cot him, and we heard that alberta

1t was half a day, so we |

was very cold, so we got him leather coats and leather jackets

and warm underwear, and, you knowe... get him ready. 4#nd my
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youngest boy was two and a half years old and the girl was
eleven and the boy was ten, you know., So... it was a...

had
quite a shock. So0... but anyway, 1 hewve the power-of-attorney,

5*06165

S80¢.. We gol... we sold the store... just for the s¥aff. They

wouldn't give us anything for the... the 1C€ess the refrigerator,
the counter or anything, you know,

we had to go. So, we juste...

Ms. who did you sell to? Not the name, but... what

kind of people?

Mrs. Minatos:s <.. Ghihese ... people. And he was... he wzs from
Canton, and he was so good... he let US... Well he said, he'd
never had any experience in business —- he was a banker, like,
he worked in the bank, so he says, "Would you help us?" so I
said, "Sure." So... he came to the store, and we'a stay in

the back of the store, Just as we were... you know, in our
living quarters. 4And we told him... and my husband /wgiready
gone, you see, but we told him how to run the store, and how
tO... the business. And then we moved upstairs, to a rooming
house, you know, until my husband... we could call him back,

elther to Vancouver... you know, &HBut there was no way we can

call him back, so we said, "Well, we'll go to Lilloet on a...

self-supporting, so that we can g0 with my mother, father

and our family", so that way, my husband could come back to
Lilloet and build a... twelve by twenty-eight shack for

S€yven pPeoples  In Lilloet i

Ms. Ah... That was all you were allowed to build?
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Mrs. Minato: Yeah. Well, there ... smaller, but that was one
of the biggest ones, because there were seven of us... you
Enow. ©S0... NEsse e went to billoet, so, We... 1 had the
power-of-attorney, so I sovld the store, and... But... you
know, every day there was rumours and there was this... where
you can't go out after certain hours and... you know, every-
thing had to be covered up, because.... the blackouts, you
know, so we bought yards and yards of black cloth, to cover
the store windows and... we never went outside after dark,

and... after sunset, and... 1t was... really, the most

traumatic time of our life, you see. <+he young one was

two and a half, and... when my husband was leaving, 1t was
March the Third, and it was a girl's festival day, you know,
SO... Mother said, "Well, he's going, but anyway, we'll
celebrate", so we had fish with the head on -- that's good...
good luck, and the... red rice, you know, with the ®d Dbeans
in for good luck, and... it wouldn't go through, you know,
you're st--... you know, but anyway, ande.e

Ms. You couldn't eat 1te.e

Mrs., Minato: No... it was... S0 heartbroke.... snd then, wWe€e...
we put name tags on all the children, in case we got separated,
you know, ande.e.. ine... on cloth, we wrote 1t down, ande... W€
put a little sum of money on the bigger ones, and the baby--

for
I knew I would carry him/wherever I g0, SOee.e #Ndee.. we all

had name tags, in case we got separated... you know, diled,
or somewhere, well we... they knew who we were. And SO WE€...

had that, and then... I got rid of the store, ande... 1 wenvy
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to the... the place where you register for the evacuation,
and I was watching, you know, and the man says, "What have
you got?" and I was watching him.,.. "Table",.. Well, he
would just write "Table" and he wouldn't write the amount,
you know. You know, that it was a... a home-made table,
or a table that was antique, Ore.. yOUu know, lik€ee. 00 1
said, "Well, this i1s no good", so when it... my turn came, I
says—--"Have you got anything?"... I says, "No, I have nothing
to declare.”" ©So 1 went back/ﬂaﬁe, and then I packed every-
thing I could, and 1 asked this Chinese gentleman, that
bought the store, if we could... there was a little, sha--...
a shack-like shed, you know. I says, "Could 1 put evegything
there, and... 1f we settle somewhere, would you send tﬁ:n?“
He says, "Sure". S0 we... we were very lucky. We... we sold
everything that we couldn't take, you knowe. SOe.. that waye.e.
we went to Lilloet for ten months, and I said, "Well, this 1s
no place. We should get out." 50 we... Iy husband went
apple picking at that time, that fall you know, they came,
because there was no labour in... the Okanagan, andee.e Mre.
Hj;lg..his... his boss, Mr., came to Lilloet, and...
hired m--... I don't know... maybe sixty young men and... you
KNOWeee TOesee picking apples? Ande.e. @were fishermen, and
eeee €Verybody that never had done labour like that, but any-

way, they went, and... and when they... he come back, someene

FA

says, "There's a high school there, and there's;ﬂ... the people l

aren't friendly, yet, but... you know," he says, "lt's good 1ior I.
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the children to get to school." S50 I says, "Well, we should..."
And then we wrote, you know, back and forth, and then Mr.
ngé said, well, we could come, ©S0... we were the first one
to get out of Lilloet, you know, and they didn't like it,
because they thought the whole -- 1f everybody went out, the
whole community would fold, you know. DBut... I was so worried
about the... see, I/???I left the children... we took the

children, and... when they didn't start any school in September,

you know... we were there, about lMay, and we played all through

-

|

summer and oeptemober, they didn'te.. So I said, "Well, this 1is

no good," S0 I wrote to Mrs. Lucas -~ she was the head of

the correspondent department at Victoria--and 1 says, "1 have
a son who's in Grade Seven and a daughter who's in Grade

Eight, and I don't want to miss... because they have good
grades in Vancouver, and I don't want them to miss a whole
year. 0, 18 1t possible that 1 could teach them by corres-
pondence?" and... she says, "Certainly." », 1 got all the

eee fOr Grade Seven and Eights,and I got all the things. 4and
then I started teaching the... our two, and my son, you know,
he was eleven and he said, "Everybody's out in the Fraser Valley,
swimming, and I have to go to school..." S0 I... 1 went around
the neighbour and said, "Is there any Grade Seven boys?" and
there was, luckily, two, you knowe. 0 1t... and they were
willing to have them educated, too, so I says, "Well, 1l'm

not a teacher or anything, but I'll try my best, you know,"

and if you read it up, % |
and -- with the correspondence,/you get the... ©0 then, 1 got
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8... another little girl come, the same age as my oldest
daughter, and... So l... I baked bread, I read at nights
to study for tomorrow, and I had this two year old... two

and a half year old, and seven of us, you knowe.

L

Ms. GeCeese W

Mrs. llinato: Really.... You know. And... so then, when I
started that, /thggnd Ofeee 1t dawn on them thate.. Sep-—o..
October, November, well... you knowe... thate.. it was no

use letting these kids -- these wgre all Canadians, you know,
and... to let them do nothing..??éo then they... they built
8 8choolses

Ms, Who built the school?

Mrs. Minato: The... the community.

Ms. The whole ZILilloet community?

Mrs, Minato: Ye--... not the Lilloet community, but...

Ms, Or... the Japanese community.e.e..

Mrs., Minato:... the Japanese community in Lilloet.

Ms. Uh-huh... uh-huh...

Mrs., Minato: And they were... a lot of people that hade.e.
university and high school graduates, and... and so, that's
how they got on there, you know. S0... we didn't have to
worry, but they went... when... we came out from Vernon..e.
1 guess, about November, you know, to Vernon... and so I
left the children to finish 'til June -- my mother and dad
stayed back, and... So that... they... they came... No, it

was spring when we went to Vernon. That's right. But anyway,
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they stayed two or three months, and they took their exam in
Lilloet, proper -- at their school there, and they all passed.
And when they come to Vernon, they went right into their
next grades.

Ms. Huh! Gee...

Mrs. Minato: Xeeh. 8B0i...

Ms. 00 you were successful, - :
Mrs. Minato: Oh yes. Uh-huh... And they did very well. They
were goode... good children, you know.

Ms. Howe.. how was 1t, being in Vernon, at first?
Were you.... did you encounter any hostility?

Mrs. IMinato: No, not where we were. We were in the country,
—=Se _ ooy V= 8 N

you know, and lr. Howe was very nice, and NMr. ]qﬂéhll was
Nilce, SOeees aNde.. there was... I don't know, maybe... a
hundred and fifty Japanese hired there, you know, and there
were teachers and there were fishermen and dressmakers ande.e.
you know, professional people, that... we all worked. We
really worked. Ifou know, it was war-time ana they... they
had... they were growing seeds, too, not just apples. oeeds,
for England, you know... Burope. Onion seeds, carrot seeds,
beet seeds, you know. #nd... we worked at... very, wery
hard. At first, you know, you didn't know a... a weed from
8eses & plgweed from a,.. a beet, you know. 4nd then...

s, Ieahe... They're hard to tell apart.

Mrs. Minato: Yes. And... really, you know, weeding, and...

spacing things and hoeing — we did a lot of hoeing,for...

X ?(V fslv-ynﬂlr ¥ be}fi and My K. P‘éf—*rﬂ
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Mse. Whateee
lMrs. Minato: And it was wenty-five cents for the ladies, 1
guess, and thirty-five cents for the men, at the start... You
know, hour... 4And then 1t went up a little
Ms. Did they supply you with housing?
Mrs. Minato: Yes, they had to. And it was... where we went

first, in Vernon, it was a... 2 bull barn... bull pen, you

KNOWe o o £

{-—--"'-‘?."._I

Ms. Really?

Mre. Ninabo: ssc 8N e 80.¢s UNEYees they kind of cleaned it
up a little bit, and... put partitions in, and there was two
families., Well, the one where we lived was... maybe from

here to That... that wall, you know.

s, About...

Mrs, Minato: To that wall...

Ms. ves 81X feet.

llrs, Minato: Yeah. ANdees SQe.. Wwe had bunks for the children,
and there wasSe.. YOU KkNOWee.s. 8nd... One bed, ande.e.e. and/iitchen -
everything in the one room, you knowe.

lis. Geeeesse 1t must have been cold, too?

firs, Minato: Oh yes, but anyway, we had a stove. =snd... every
time... you washed the wall, you see, it would smell of manure.
But... But, you know, it was a place to stay, and then... they
moved us into a... real home, you know, later, and...l lived

with a... Caucasian people, half of the house, you know, and

that wasn't bad. But... Oh, when we went -- moved to Vernon,
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. :_ ) e’ they Sald-
and Mrs. (V" came, and said, ~yYou knowy/"The house will
be mady when you cocme from... from Lilloet,” and lI... 1
didn't have the older children, but I had Hoger, you
know, the youngest, in my arms, and... she said, "You know,

the house isn't ready yet, so do you want to stay with us for

a day?" You know. 1 Just broke down. l... it was such a

traumatic feeling, you know, after months of, you know, making

{/ *ﬁyﬁ(

D it
arrangements, but anyway, we got that... metv... p&0 barn, so

that was... for awhile, you know, we were there, DBut we had

SO MaNye... you know, three children, you see, so they thought,
well, we need a bigger place, you know. ©0... They moved us,
and then... ny father died at Lilloet, that... that spring, and
ees While we were in Vernon, you know. That was the... year

after/the children came in June, year after, and my father

died there, so we got him buried there. 5o we go to Lilloet

once in awhile. 4nd... my mother and my youngest son 1s
buried in Vernon. You know. And my oldest daughter 1s
buried in_Toronto. S0 we're all... over the... Canada.
Ms. T don't know Lilloet at all. Did many of the
Japenese stay in Lilloet?

Mrs. Minato: No, Jjust about two... two families, .l guess,
that stayed. DBecause we weren't in lLilloet proper, you
see., We were in East Lilloet, on/gﬁéogast part of the
Fraser River, you knowe.e.

Ms. Across the Fr-—=... Iriverese

Mrs. Minato: Yes. Uh=huthie. e
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Mse Oh, I see,
Mrs. Minato: I went to see 1t about three years ago, ande.e.
where we madé... where wee... you see, 1t was so hot... yoOu
ees you built your house, well, we had to dig into it 1in
the summer to make a... 8 place where you stayed 1n the
daytime, you know. JXFrom the heat.
Ms. Oh... underground, you dug?
Mrs. Minato: Yeah. 4And we put rocks in, so that the dirt...
earth wouldn't fall in to you, you know. It wasn't a cellar,
it Was Qees 2... 0o get away from the heat, you knowe OUh, ande..e.
oh, it was hot. And then in the winter, it went down as far
as fifty-two below zero, soO...you know, even a rabblt would

freeze. We had to buy water there. There was no water there.

3. | |
S50 we used to have to buy water from fguntaln, you Kknow, and

it was fifteen cents a barrel, you see. ©»0O... When they put
the water into the buckets to fill the -- well, 1t would
almost stick to you in the winter, because 1t was... that
cold, you know, and it was not water. It was going to 1ce,
YOU KNOWe e e

1t was
Ms. Oh... / sort of gelled alreadye.
MI‘S- MinatO: Yeah, uh-huh.--. Ye&ih- Oh yeah, S0 it WS e e e

And so one... when it's cold, well, my husband or 1l would

take turns to be up all night so we'd have the stove £01Ng

Lven the kettle... vinegar froze, T00.
Ms. Really?l

Mrs. Minato: Yeah. #nd S0Oe... you know, it's just a one...
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one light plank, you see, and it... 1t was wet when we bullt
the house, so0 it dried up, 80 we had To chink everyeee €VeIees
you know, crack, and there was 1lcicles and the... there was
heat going, but you see, 1t was so cold, and when you were
asleep, well this would be like ice... right by the sheetv
where your breath was, you know. Oh, and it was cold.l got soO...
Mse So there was only one layer of wood? <Llhat's all?
Mrs. Minato: Yeah, that's all.
Ms. Was that common in Lilloet?
Mrs. Minato: That was what?
ls. To build so..f?&i%h no insulation, or
Mrst Minato: Well, the houses 1 ‘guess were okay,
was?gg;ething temporary, eh? Oh, yeahe.e.

Mse Did you have to build your own house?

Mrs. Minato: YeS... yes. 50, my husband went first, and

then there were already people that started 1t, you know,

so then they... each guy would help build the next guy's
house, like, you knowee.. £4Nd, SOeee

Mrs. Minato: Yeah, whate... lise.
Ms. And you had to build according to/...government
specifications?
Mrs, Minato:... what we paid... we had to pay, you Sce.
Ms. Oheoo
lMrs, lMinsto: You knowe ©S0... whatever... what size you want
to build, okay, you pay... you see, everything... we didn't
ask the government a cent to move from Vancouver TO Lilloetees

We never asked -- that's one thing I1'm very proud of. 1 thougiht,

"Well, we won't be a burden on Canada." You know, even 1i tThey
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were kicking us out."

Ms. Te8ni ., Righta.e

Mrs, Minato: Uh-huh., We lost... that was the biggest thing,

but... what hit us was, we lost our son in Vernon, you know.
1t
That death was really --/was the saddest part of our li1fe, you

know. 4nd then father...

Mse. Was that... that was an accident, was it?

Mrs, Minato: No, no. He... he was sick. But... you Kknowee..
we were

1t was. We...we moved to Vernon, because... we knew we were/

near a hospital and near a good medical, you know, and every-

thing, because when... when we were in Lilloet, you know, my

son was helping a neighbour chop kindling, and he... he broke

hls nose, you know, and so we have to get a permit from the

Mounties, you see, to go over to get 4... and wee.. 1 to0Ok

him over to this doctor, and he... he was... well, you know,

a country doctor, like that... and... he just ... you know,

he says, "Oh... you broke your nose," and he just..e.

Ms. Ughe'ss

Mrs, Minato: Like that, and he put a plas--... 1 said, "By

golly -- I could have done that at home." You know, after

all the... hours of getting a permit to come over, ande...

Ms, ANd get bad carfese

Hree Minatos Oh. T gaid  "No. Edon't "

Ms, He Jjust pushed 1t straight, and...

rirs, lMinato: Yeah.:.

Ms. vae BLULEEd UDS %

Mrs, Minato: Pla-—... adhesive over 1teee
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Ms.
Mrs, Hinato: But Lilloet has a nice doctor now, this... he's
retired now, but Dr. Miyasaki, you know... Japanese doctor
has been there, you know,;n?t's reallyeese I think -- he's
retired now, but... that was very good. But when we were
there, there was... S0 I said, "Well, we'd better get out
to somewhere there's medical attention! especially when you
have children. Yeah. So it was... qQuite a vhing. Oh well...
Ms. Did they... did they give you decent medical
attention in Vernon? You didn't have any trouble getting
attention there?
lMrs, Minato: Oh yes, well... it was... one you/.éﬁe doctors
Came &Ndee.. YOU KNOW, NOeee NO... 1 don't think there was

any discrimination. They were very good. I think SO, be-

cause I spoke out, in every way, you know. I wasn't S01ng

to take... I said what I wanted, and... be assertive, you

KNOoWe. ﬁﬁd'I NEVEeXlree o e

The remainder of this track of the interview is omitted from
the transcripteeee.

End of TraCk 1s




